

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Academic Affairs Committee June 20, 2024 Minutes

Presidents Boardroom, Horace Mann Building

A live stream of the meeting for public viewing also took place on YouTube.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Committee Chair Dr. Gloria Williams, Trustees Daniel Currier, Trustee Lucey and Board Chair Ali Salehi, ex-officio member.

EXCUSED MEMBERS: Secretary Reichelt and Trustee Landrau

MEMBERS PARTICIPATING REMOTELY: Trustee George Gilmer

Also, present were Westfield State University President Dr. Linda Thompson and Interim Provost Dr. David Caruso, and Dr. Ziblim Abukari and Dr. Rebecca Morris.

Committee Chair Williams called the meeting to order at 9:34am and a roll call was taken of the committee members participating as listed above. It was announced that the meeting was being livestreamed and recorded.

MOTION made by Trustee Currier seconded by Trustee Gilmer to approve the minutes of the April 25, 2024, meeting.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

Trustee Williams	Yes
Trustee Currier	Yes
Trustee Gilmer	Yes
Trustee Lucey	Yes

There being no discussion, **ROLL CALL VOTE** passed motion unanimously.

Interim Provost Caruso informed the Board of Trustees of the accomplishments from the academic year 2023-2024.

1. There were thirty-eight (38) academic majors that were successfully delivered to the student body by over forty **fewer** faculty members than we have had for over five years now. It was quite an effort from the faculty to carry out the curriculum. We had thirteen (13) searches to bring new tenure trac faculty members to campus and twelve of the searches were successful. This is the first time in several years that we bring many new faculty members to campus. There will be senior faculty members that will be retiring in the next few years so It's important to start the process of hiring new faculty.

2. Academic Affairs reopened the Deans Office for the Division of Graduate and Continuing Education since the DGCE had been disseminated around campus with no leadership for the Division. Dr. Nora Padykula has been named the Dean and Jessica Tansey is the Associate Dean to lead the division. The leadership will make a difference with DGCE and will be a key to the finance sustainability of the campus.

3. A notable accomplishment was the redevelopment of the senior leadership for Academic Affairs. During the pandemic, there was a temporary structure made up of four associate deans running the four schools. We have now restructured to a two-college structure: College of Arts and Sciences and the College of Professional Studies. Each school will be led by two of the associate deans and as of July 1, 2024, will be appointed as the Interim Deans. Dr. Sabine Klein and Dr. Ziblim Abukari will lead the two schools. There is now five senior leaders for Academic Affairs: Provost, Associate Provost, Dean of DGCE and the two Deans for the College of Arts and Sciences and the College of Professional Studies.

4. The provost office staff has been organized by appropriately assigning functional reporting of all of Academic Affairs to either the Provost or to the Associate Provost which is set up to be more effective for the incoming Provost William Salka.

5. There was a new Center for Teaching and Learning launched to support faculty excellence in curriculum and instruction that will begin in the fall.

6. Reorganized the Office of Institutional Research and created the Office of Institutional Research and Assessment and relocated the accreditation functions. The programmatic accreditation approvals for all our academics that require external accreditation to the Deans offices will now be appropriately managed.

7. We created a faculty mini grant program to support faculty scholarships on an ongoing basis. A year ago, the University had 12 externally funded grants with less than a million dollars brought into the campus. Today we have 34 funded external grants funded bringing in almost ten million dollars in funding to the university. This is a credit to the faculty to seek and acquire extra funding. President Thompson received credit for her supporting that work by connecting the faculty with an external firm that guides to the faculty.

8. The new General Education program. A significant amount of work has been done over the last three years by faculty and will be launched in September. Freshmen will enroll in new journey classes that are part of the General Education program. There are 40 new classes that are being fully staffed and they <u>will not</u> be the typical disciplined-based class. They are all unique topically based interdisciplinary cross-departmental classes that will support a successful college career and their retention. The work involved in getting this program together was unsurmountable. The Governance committee and Curriculum committee had many new course approvals above and beyond the usual. This was one of the items in the NECHE report that was important for us to launch. The two-year review with NECHE is due January 15, 2025.

9. The Bachelor of Fine Arts degree was approved by the Board of Higher Education, and it is the first to be offered here at the University in its 185th year history.

10. Launching this year is a Bachelor's degree in Occupational Therapy Assistant studies. There are many Bachelor degrees that are being developed such as Data Analytics, BFA in interdisciplinary Arts, a Green Entrepreneurship, Business Analytics degree, Health Care Innovation and a Leadership

bachelor's degree that is a pathway from programs in the community college into the bachelor's degree and then lead into a Master's in that field.

Previous Committee Chairman, Robert Martin, complimented the Interim Provost, David Caruso, for a job well done this past year. Board Chair Ali Salehi stated he appreciated the expertise of Robert Martin during his time on the Board.

The upcoming turnover from faculty (10 vacant positions from retirement and resignations this year) is important to plan for the succession of the faculty members and the department.

Discussion regarding the Master in Business between the Trustees and Dr. Rebecca Morris.

Discussion regarding the Master of Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner between the Trustees and Jessica Holden, Associate Dean of Nursing.

MOTION made by Trustee Currier, seconded by Trustee Lucey to approve the Master in Business Administration. **Motion passed unanimously.**

RC)LL	CALL VOT	Έ:
-		N A /*11*	

Trustee Williams	Yes
Trustee Currier	Yes
Trustee Gilmer	Yes
Trustee Lucey	Yes

MOTION made by Trustee Currier seconded by Trustee Gilmore to approve the Master of Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner. **Motion passed unanimously.**

ROLL	CALL V	OTE:
------	--------	------

Trustee Williams	Yes
Trustee Currier	Yes
Trustee Gilmer	Yes
Trustee Lucey	Yes

There being no further business,

MOTION made by Trustee Currier, seconded by Trustee Gilmer to adjourn. **Motion passed unanimously.**

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
ROLL CALL VOTE:	
Trustee Williams	Yes
Trustee Currier	Yes
Trustee Gilmer	Yes
Trustee Lucey	Yes

Meeting adjourned at 10:35am.

Attachments presented at this meeting:

- a. Draft Minutes of April 25, 2024
- b. Letter of Intent. MBA
- c. Motion Master of Business Administration (MBA)
- d. Letter of Intent. Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner

e. Motion - Master of Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner

Secretary's Certificate

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the approved minutes of the Westfield State University Board of Trustees Academic Affairs Committee meeting held on June 20, 2024.

Daniel Currier, Secretary

Date